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To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Hom Lake, Mississippi 

Repurt un the Fi.n11ncial Stalcrnent.s 

INDEPEND[NT AUDITORS' REPORT 

W. BUFORD GIVENS 
Certified Public Accountant 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activilies. the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2016, nnd the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Horn Lake, 
Mississippi's basic fi11a11cinl statements as listed in the rable of contents. · 

Mmwgement's Respo11sJbill(vfor the Fi111111clal Sa,tements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance or internal 1;ontrol relevant lo the preparation and fair prcsent11tion of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or error. 

A.111litor's Relpo11slbi/ity 

Our responsibility is to express op1mons on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing stumiards generally accepted In the United Stales of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing S'tandard!, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform !he audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 1111di1 evidence about the amounts nnd disclosures in the financial 
slal~incnls. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, inch1ding the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair prescnlation of lhe linnncial statements in ordel' to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumslances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on ll1e effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evRlualing the overnll presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opl11/011s 

ln our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of 
the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2016, and the respective changes In fuumcial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the yenr then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary lnjbrmation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
nnalysis (pages 3-13"), budg.ctary comparison schedule (page •l<I), the schedule of the city's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability und the schedule or city's contributions (pages 45-46) with accompanying notes (page 47) be presented to 
supplement the basic linancial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial $lalements, is required 
by the Govemmental Accounting Stiinciards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
bnsic financial statements in an appropriate operational. economic. or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
Stutes of America, whfoh consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the infommtiou and comparing 
the information for consisteilcy with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial stntements. and other 
knowledge we obtainc.d during om nudit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on lhl) infunnation becm1si: the limited procedure:;. do nnt pmvidc us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Other /nformm/011 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectlvely comprise the City of 
Horn Lake, Mississippi's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by Title ·2 U.S. Code of Federal Regu/aJions Part 200. Un({orm Administralfve Requirements, 
Cost Prindples. andAudil Req11ireme11Jsfor Fcdernl 1lwards and is not.a required part oflhe basic financial statements. 

The ~chedulc of expenditures of foderal awards is the i-esponsihiliLy of management and was derived from and relate directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used lo prepare the basic financial stutements. Such informntion has been 
subjecLed to the auditing procedures applied in rhe audit of the basic financial statements mid certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such iiyformation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the bnsic financial statements qr to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in Lhe United States of America. ln our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is fairly stated in all 111atc1ial respects In relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The Scheduk of Surety Bonds for Municipal Offkinls has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Requlred by Go11emme111 Audiri11g Sta111l11rds 

In accordance with Government Auditing Sli7ndards, we have also issued our report dnted August 11, 2017, on our 
considerarlon of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's internal control over financial repo1ting and on our tests ol' its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and g~ant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance 011d the results of that testing, and 
not ro prnvide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards io considering the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's 
internal control over financial repo1iing and compliance. 
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F.0. Givens & Co. 
Certified Public Accountants 
A\1gust 11,2017 
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City of Horn Lake, Mississippi 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For Year Ended September 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

This discussion and analysis of the City of Horn Lake's financial performance provides an overall review of the City's 
financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2016. The Intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at 
the City's financial performance as a whole. Readers should also review the basic financial statements to enhance 
their understanding of the City's financial performance. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for 2016 as compared to 2015 were as follows: 

Total net position decreased from $(5,283,376) to $(5,313,962) 
Total liabllitles and deferred inflows increased from $62,506,461 to $63,311,748 
Total assets and deferred outflows of governmental activities increased from $41,286,155 to $41,380,395 
Total assets and deferred outflows of business-type activities Increased from $15,936,930 to $16,617,391 

Using This Annual Financial Report 

This annual report consists of a series of flnancial statements and notes to those statements. These statements 
are organized so the reader can understand the City of Horn Lake's performance as a whole. The statements then 
proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial conditions. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide Information about the activities of the whole 
City, presenting both an aggregate view of the City's finances and a long-term view of those assets. Major fund 
financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services 
were financed In the short-term as well as funds that remain for future spending. The fund financial statements 
also look at the City's most significant funds with.all other non-major funds presented in an aggregate column. 

Reporting on the City of Horn Lake as a Whole 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

While this document contains information about the funds used by the City to provide services to our citizens, the 
view or the City as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, "How did we do financially 
during 20167" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities answer this question. 

These statements include all assets and liablllties using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting 
used by the private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's 
revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the City's net position and the change in that position. This change in position ls 
important because it tells the reader whether, for the City a.s a whole, the financial position of the City has 
improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the overall position of the City, non-financial Information such as 
changes In the City's tax base and the condition of the City's capital assets will also need to be evaluated. 
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City of Horn lake, Mississippi 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, all of the Clty!s activities are reported as 
Governmental Activities, which Include all of the City's servlces such as police, fire, administrative, public services 

and all other departments. The business-type activities of the City of Horn Lake consist of the City's Water and 
Sewer System, also known as the Ullllty Department. This Is know11 as the Proprietary Fund. The City of Horn Lake 

has no component units. 

Reporting on the City of Horn lake's Most Signi_fj_cant Funqs 

Fund Financial Statements 

The analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 17. Fund financial reports provide detailed information 
about the City's major funds. Based on restrictions on the use of monies, lhe City has established many funds, 
which account for the multitude of services provided to the City's residents. However, these fund financial 
statements focus on the City's most significant funds. In the case of the City of Horn Lake, the City's major funds 
are the General, Debt Service, and Utility Funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well 

as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds Is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, It Is 
useful to compare the Information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term Impact of government's near.term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balances and 
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City of Horn Lake maintains an enterprise fund that is used to report business-type actlvltles in the 

government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise fund accounting in order to account for the Utlllty 
System Fund. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The basic 'proprietary fund financial statements can be found on page 21. 
Operating revenues of the System are utilized to fund the operation and maintenance expenses and debt service. 

The City of Horn Lake as a Whole 

Recall that the Statement of Net Position looks at the City as a whole. Table 1 provides a summary of the City's net 
position for 2016 compared to 2015. Table 2 shows the changes in net position for the 2016 year. 
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Table 1 
Statement of Net Position 

Assets 
Current and other assets 

Capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred amount on refunding 

. Deferred outflows-pensions 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Uabilltles 

Currerit liabllitles 
Long-term Ii~ boli lies 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred lnriows-pensions 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Net Assets 

City of Horn t.ake, Mississippi 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For Year Ended September 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

2016 2015 

Government 

Activities 

Business-type 

Activities 

Government 

Activities 

9,978,527 

26,939,334 

36,917,861 

387,712 

4,074,822 

4,462,534 

4,119,095 

34,624,602 

38,743,697 

6,894,649 

1,938,268 

8,832,917 

3,784,539 

12,084,639 

15,869,178 

348,335 

399,878 

748,213 

1,417,593 

14,134,069 

15,551,662 

183,472 

183,472 

10,115,221 

27,630,947 

37,746,168 

448,507 

3,091,480 

3,539,987 

5,120,838 

34,244,254 

39,365,092 

6,750,102 

967,613 
7,717,715 

Invested In capital assets, riet of debt 
Restricted 

10,027,249 
92,330 

{16,315,798) 

(6,196,219) 

(459,617) 
423,991 

917,883 

7,655,685 
72,437 

(13,524,774) 

(5,796,652} 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 882,257 

Business-type 

Activities 

2,543.882 

12,566,585 

15,110,467 

394,268 

317,981 

?U,249 

1,203,137 

14,120,991 

15,324,128 

99,526 

99,526 

(320,470) 
748,524 

85,222 
513,276 

In connection with the lrnplementatlon of new standards on a·ccountlng and financlal reporting for 

pensions in 2015, management presents thefollowlng additional Information: 

Total unrestricted net position (deficit) 

Less: unrestricted deficit in net porlsion resulting from Implementation of 

GASB No. 68 and 71 in previous year 

Unrestricted net pos itlon, exclusive of the net pension Ila bll I ty 

8 

$ {15,397,915) 

21,434,996 

$ 6,037,081 
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City of Horn Lake, Mississippi 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For Year Ended September 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increa:;ed by $1,009,160. Cash and cash equivalents increased by 
$545,903, excluding restricted cash. The following table, Table 2, presents a summary of the changes In net 

position for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. 

Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

2016 2015 
Government Business-type Government Busl ness-type 

Activities Activities Activities Activities 

R<:venues 
Program Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 1,833,391 $ 4,515,206 $ 2,031,958 $ 4,394,496 

Operating grants and contributions 224,773 251,016 

Capital grants and contributions 1181S89 
Total Program Revenues ·2,058,164 4 515 206 2,282,974 4,513,085 

General Revenues: 
Tnxes 12,551,498 12,110,426 
Other revenues 2,267,916 1,195 2,292,736 16,978 

Transfers 400 000 {400,000) 400,000 {400,000) 

Total General Revenues 15,219,414 (398,805} 14,803,162 {383,022) 

Total Revenues 17,277,578 4,116.401 17,086,136 4,130,063 

Expenses 
Genera 1 government 2,570,385 2,474,918 
Public safety 9,144,050 8,419,746 
Pubil c works 2,6()4.,389 3,139,863 
Cultural & recreational 1,075,063 1,162,867 
Economic developmemt 367,358 337,281 
Interest 502,060 939,654 
Pension 1,722,03.0 147,922 1,757,450 180,766 
Utllltv department 3,599,498 3,448,533 

iotal Expenses 17,985,345 3,747,420 18,231,779 3,629,299 

Change In Net Position $ (707,767) $ 368,981 $ (1,145,643) $ 5001764 

Net Position, Beginning of year (5,796,652) 513,276 9,452,095 1,463,117 

Prior petlod adjustment 3oa,;rno !14,103,10'1) (1,450,605) 

Net Position, beginning of year, 
as restated (5,488,452) 513,276 (4,651,009) 12,512 

Net position - End of year $ (6,196,219) $ 882,257 $ {5,796,652) $ 513,276 
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Governmental Activities 

City of Horn Lake, Mississippi 
Management1s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Unaudited 

Several revenues fund the City's governmental activities. The largest funding source, property tax revenue, 
accounted for $7,071,187, or 46.5% of general revenues; sales tax revenue accounted for $4,785,339, or 31.4% of 
general revenues. Fines of $1,119,644 accounted for 7.4% of general revenues, and franchise taxes of $694,972 
accounted for 4.6% of general revenues. 

The remaining 10.1% of general revenues was comprised of miscellaneous· revenues and transfers. 

Total general revenues from governmental activities increased from $14,803,162 in 2015 to $15,219,414, or 2.8%. 
Major expense activities Included public safety expenditures accounting for 50.8% of total program expenses, and 
general government expenses accounting for 14.3% of total program expenses. Although the City has worked 
very hard on Increasing Its tax base by being proactive with new businesses and reducing CQsts department by 
department, we still strive to provlde better service at a lower cost per man-hour. The ability of the City to 
continue to provldQ quality·services without tax increases rests on the City management's abnlty to keep these 

costs In line. 

Business-type Activities 

Business-type activities Increased the City's net position by $368,981. Operati1;g revenues from the utility system 
fund totaled $4,515,206 in 2016, an Increase of 2.4% from 2015 operating revenues of $4,408,923. 

Expenses of the utility fund increased by 3.3% in 2016, totaling$ 3,747,420 In 2016 and.$3,629,299 in 2015. 

The City's Funds 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities In 
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental func:l.s financial statements focus on near-term Inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well 
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful In 
evaluating a City's near-term financing requirements. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, 
debt service, and capital projects funds. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, It is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar Information presented for 
governmental activities In the government-wide flnanclal statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term Impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. The "Governmental Funds Balance 
Sheet" and the "Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes ln Fund Balances" 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
These reconciliations are on pages 18 and 20, respectively. 

The City maintains indlvldual governmental funds In accordance with the Mississippi Municipal Audit and 
Accounting Guide issued by the Mississippi Office of the State Auditor. Information ls presented separately in the 
governmental funds Balance Sheet and In the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
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City of Horn Lake 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2.016 

Unaudited 

Changes in Fund Balances for all major funds. All olher non-major funds are combined together and presented in 
these reports as other governmental funds. 

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 19 of this report. It Is important 
to realiz.e that all short-term notes issued by the City are recognized in the current period as short-term liabilities, 
and once bonded by the City they become long-term general obllgatlon debt of the City. 

Proprietary Funds 

The net position of the proprietary funds at the end of fiscal year 2016 totaled $882,257 which represents a 
$368,981 Increase from 2015. 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The City's budget is prepared according to Mississippi law and is based on accounting for certain transactions on a 
basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund. 

During the course of 2016, the City amended its general fund budget. All recommendations for a budget change 
come from the Department Heads to the City Clerk. The Board of Aldermen of the City does not allow budget 
changes that modify totals within departments without Board approval. With the General Fund supporting many 
of the City's major activities such as police, fire, ambulance, street and park departments, as well as legislative, 
Judicial and executive activities, the General Fund ls monitored closely, looking for possible revenue shortfalls or 
overspending by individual departments. For the general fund, original budgeted revenues were $14,641,905; 
amended budget amounts were $14,39S,452 and actual revenue collections-budgetary basis were 
$14,151,443 . 

. capital Assets and long-Term Obligations 
Table 3 
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

Land 
Bull dings & Improvements 
Equipment & Vehicles 
Construction In Progress 
Infrastructure 

Government 
Activities 

$ 3,698,471 
11,019,977 

8,12.6,491 
474,930 

27,414,029 

2016 

Accumulated Depreciatiqn (23,794,564) 

Total Capital Assets, net $ 26,939,334 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 28,225 
151,001 
389,12.8 
912,514 

20,199,935 
(9,596,164) 

~ 12,084,639 

11 

2015 
Government 

Activities 

$ 3,668,471 
11,019,977 

7,736,340 
300,039 

27,414,029 
(22,507,909) 

$ 27,630,947 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 28,225 
151,001 
389,UB 
374,900 

20,142,993 
{8,930,434) 

$ 12,155,813 
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City of Horn Lake 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Unaudited 

Long.Term Obligations 
Table 4 
Outstanding Notes and Long-Term Obligations at Year End 

2016 2015 
Governmental A~tiviti es: 

Genera I obi lgati on bonds $ 12,180,000 $ 12,920,000 

Special assessment bonds 3,980,000 4,590,000 

Loans payable 245,628 1,766,532 

Leases payable 788,349 574,017 

Bond premium 138,648 162,977 

Bond discount (32,798) (38,264} 

Deferred loss (387,712) (448,507) 

Compensated absences 280,830 289!613 

Total $ 17,192(945 $ 19,816,368 

Business-type Activities: 

Bonds and notes payable $ 10,415,000 $ 10,670,000 

Loans payable 2,372,318 1,990,356 

Bond premium 105,273 210,195 

Deferred loss (348,335) (394,2.68) 
Compensated absences 33,117 36,117 

Total $ 12,577!373 $ 1215121400 

During 2016, the City Issued $2,695,000 in general obligation and special assessment combined refunding bonds to 
advance refund $2,510,000 of 2005 special assessment refunding bonds. The refunding will reduce the City's debt 
service payments over the next 15 years by almost $325,495. More detailed information about the City's long­
term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial statements. 

Economic Conditions 

The City of Horn Lake is experiencing new development, new business, and expansion In the new fiscal budget 
year. First with new developmen~s ls the Real Estate International group out of Destin Florida. This project Is 
underway with a $3.2 million cost for first phase of the old Elvis Presley Circle G Ranch, which is located at the 
corner of Hwy 301 and Hwy 302. Project leaders that have worked on former Disney projects anticipate 160,000 
visitors annually will visit the development after completion of the first phase and up to 400,000 annually will visit 
after additional phases are added. The Circle G Ranch will place Horn Lake on the map internationally with the 
restoration of the Elvis Honeymoon cottage, Stables/Equestrian programs, wedding chapel, shopping, hotels, 

12 
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City of Horn Lake, Mlsslsslppl 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For Year Ended September 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

housing, senior living, and other amenities with outdoor music around a lake that would come first. The second 
new business development Is the CORES group out of Atlanta Georgia Is underway with Horn Lake Business Center. 
The new Business Center will consist of 5 warehouse/manufacturing buildings totaling 2. 7 million square feet. The 

CORES project has an estimated cost of $120 million to build and supply the s new warehpuse/manufacturing 
bulldlngs. 

Also there are several other projects that will help build a better economy throughout the City of Horn Lake. These 
projects Include the expansion of Rite Hite International Dock Door Safety Systems and Ground Support Specialist, 
LLC. The City of Horn Lake Is also committed to providing all public services needed to support this growth In each 
fiscal year . 

.Conta.ctlng the City's Finance Department 

This financial report Is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with a general overview 
of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money It receives. If you have any questions 
about this report or need additional information, contact the City Clerk at 662-342-3488. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE. MISSlSSIPPI 
Statement of Net Position 

September 30, 2016 

Govc:rnmeutal Huaines.'1-Type 
Ac1Mtie$ ActMtics Total 

ASSF.TS 

Cnsh and eu:1h equivalents $ Sfll ,456 $ 2,277,022 $ 2.778.478 
lnws11neu1s 103,793 103,793 
Accounts receivable, net of allowence for 

doubtful acool\nl!l of$2,564,956 and $68,360 905.516 787,641 1,693,157 
lntergoveaunental receivable 517,~4S 517,848 
Property IIIXcs receivable 6,912,775 6,912.775 
Prepaid expense 54,548 293,690 348,238 
Inventory 2,195 2,195 
Reslriclcd ussels: 

Cnsh in bank 423.991 423,991 
Property held for sale 982,591 982,591 

Capital assets, nc1 
of a,:cumulu1ed dc;pr~'Qioliou 26,939,334 12,084,639 39,023,973 

Totnl AsselS J6,917,86i J 5,869.1178 52,787.039 

~EFEBREQ Q~l!llLOWS OF RES0l1R~ES 

Deferred amoum on refunding 387.712 348.335 736,047 
Deferred omOows relatell to pensions 4,074,822 399 878. 4,474 700 

Totnl Oeferred OuLOows of Resources 4,41>2 S34 748,213 5,210,747 

LIABJUTlli:S 

Accounts pn)•able 924,693 140,414 1,065,107 
Accrued ~xpenscs 168,931 14,77] 183,702 
Customer deposits 299,40.5 339,352 638,757 
Other deposits 135,734 135. 734 
Ac.:nied interest payable 168,911') 145,328 J 14.237 
l.h1camell revc11uc 16,491 16,491 
Long-term liabilities 

Due withln one year. 
Capital debt 2,421,423 761,237 3,182.660 

Due in IDQro Uiun on~ ycur: 
Cupital deb! 14,878,374 12,131,354 27,009,728 
No11-capi1at debt 280,830 33,117 313,947 
Net pension lialliliLy l l),165,398 1.969 598 21,434,996 

Total Liabilities 38,743 697 l 5,551,662 54,295,359 

O!fiFERRED lNFLOl\'.~ OF RE~0!,1RCl!:S 

" Unnvailoblc revenue.property tu.-c 6,894,649 6,894,649 
Deferred inflows-pensions 1,938,268 183 472 2,121 740 

I' Totftl Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,832,917 183,472 9,016,389 

NET POSITION 

,. Net investmenJ in capilnl assets 10,027.249 l459,617) 9,567,632 
fu.-strioti:d for; 

Culture and recreation 92,330 92,330 
Debt service 42.\991 423,991 

Unrestricted il6131S,798l 917 883 (IS13971915) 

Total Net Position $ (6,196,219) 882,257 $ (5,313,962) 

~~ 

The accompanying notes are an intcgrul part of the lina.11cinl staretnents. 
15 



!,OV.!I!!J!!!!lll[ !l.~IMII~ 
flctlenll sQvenanenl 
Public <11'9ty 

Public wor~-s 
C11Jhmt nnd rccrcatg,,, 

Economic de1,:lopmcnt 
lnron:,t 011 long-tenn dohl 
l'cll!ion expense 

Total govenun~tal activities 

»oilom·Txeo Agi•!l!S: 

Utilily 
Pension C~JlCIISO 

TnW huSUle$S•cyJ>O aclivilillS 

fotnl goverumeou $ 

CITY OF IIORN LAKE, !\USSISSll'PI 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year 1£uded September 30, 2016 

Net (Kxp•nse<) RO\·ooue and 
l1ro(2"1Un nov,aucs Chongci In Ner rosltl!!n 

01Jrt11tinu ('•11ilal 
Charc•• fot Grant> and Gtan1S and Governmental Bnslness:l')'P" 

E'l~nse..~ Sen·lfl'S C<tntributions Contribulioh!i Acllvltl .. Actlvittc,, Tot•I 

2,570,335 s ~ (2,$70.~85) $ s (2,570,385) 
9,144,060 235,688 224,773 (8,633,599) {&,633,599) 
2,604.~!9 1,399,~~9 (1,204,950) (l,l04,9S0l 
1,073,0tSJ l~S.264 (926,199) (926,799) 

367.3~8 (367,358) (367,358) 
502,0bO (502,060) (502,060) 

I, 72.1 030 CJ. 722,030) (1,722,030) 
l 7,98S,3-t5 -uil,,!91 22•1 773 {15,927,181) (15,927.131) 

J,599,4911 4,515,206 91,,708 9U,708 
147922 !147,922) {147,922) 

3,747420 4,~15,206 767 786 767,7K6 

2J.7.32,76S s 6,348~97 $ 224-,713 $ (lS,927,181) 767 786 \l5,IS9,J9S) 

Gfflontl Rovcnu<: 
Property taxo, 7,071,187 7,071,187 
franchise taxes 694.972 694,972 
Sale:;. tu,.. 4,78l.33'1 4,78S.ll9 
lntcrrr~\"l!lnlU~ntkl .\47.~04 347,504 
l .. i~ensv &. pcnnit~ 204,001 204.001 
Floo. 1,119,644 1.119,(,44 
1'c,1nlty and inlcitsf 40.956 40.956 
Penally 011d inl"'11Bt ig,162 19.162 
lntorost 4,0bl 1.(95 S,2Sb 
Ml!1Cellaneo1JS 611,105 671,IOS 
lrain (1.o,,S) on disposal ef nsscb (138,S 17) (138,517) 
Tr.111sfcn1 400000 !400,0001 

Toto! Ge1ten1l Re"'ouos & Trnrisfcrs 1Hl94J4 (398,805) 141320~09 
Ch,mii• in Net f<>silio,1 (701,767) )68 981 (338,78{;) 

Nc1 Pos.Uk•U • Benmmng uf \' ~r (5,7%.6Hl )ll,276 (5,23),376) 
Pnor period u<fj~)imcm1 308 200 308,200 

Hd PositHm .. F .. nd otV~ar $ ~6,196,2191 $ 882,257 s (5.:ilJ,962} 

RECEIVED 

'Ilic ac<:<1mpanying notes oro ,m imcgmf part of the Onanciol stnlc1ncnll!. 
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CITY 0(1' HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
September 30, 2016 

Major Funds 
Other 

Genoritl Debt Servlctt Governmental 
Fund Fund Funds 

65SETS 

Cnsh and cnsh equiv11lent.~ $ 7,990 $ $ 493,466 

lnvestmenlS 103,793 
Accounts tcecivnhle(nel ofnllowunre for 

uncolle<.1ibles or $2..564,956 1)05.516 
lntergovemmculal receivable 489,714 28,134 
Prepllid Items 54.548 
Property lax receivable 3,975,817 2,785,217 151,741 

Total Assets $ 5,-48Z,830 2,839,765 $ 673,341 

LIAlll LJTIES 
Accounts puy11ble s 363,821 560,702 s 170 
Accrued expenses 168,933 
Other Deposits 435 )39 

Total liabilities %7893 560 702 170 

DEFERREl> INFLOWS OF RF.SOURCES 

Unuvailable revenue - property taxes 3,984,969 2,759,995 149,685 

Total Deferred Inflows ofResources 3 984 969 2,759,995 149,685 

FllND BALANCES 

Nonspendablc: 
Prepaid items 54,548 

Restricted: 
Culture and recreation 92i33Q 
Debt service 

As..'iigned: 
Economic De\•elopment 431,156 

Unassigned 529,96!1 (53:i.4110} 

Total Fund Brdnnc:es 529.968 (480,932) 523,486 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ .S,48~830 s 2,839,765 6731341 

1lic accompnn)'ing notes are an integral part of the finnnc.ial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 501,456 
103,793 

905,516 
517,848 
54,548 

6,912,715 

s 8,995,936 

924,693 
168,933 
435,139 

1,528,765 

61894,649 

6,894,649 

54,548 

92,330 

431,156 
{:l,512~ 

572,522 

s 819951936 



CITY OF HORN LAKE , l\.1ISSISSIPPI 
Reconciliation of Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2016 

Total Fu11d Bale11ce - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental ac1ivities are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation 
of$ 23,794.564. 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pension reported in governmental 
activities is not a financial resource and therefore is not reported in the funds 

Other long terri, ossets aro not available to pay for cun-ent period expenditures 
and therefore are defurred in the funds. These assets consist of the following: 

Tax forfeited land ("investments") 
Deferred amount on refunding 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions reported in governmental 
activities is not a financial resource and therefore is not repoited in the funds 

Long~tenn liabilities are not due and payable in tbe current year and therefore 
are not reported in the funds 

Accrneil interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore is not reported in the funds 

Net l'osltlon of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
18 
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$ 

572,522 

26,939,336 

4,074,822 

982,591 
387,712 

{1,938,268) 

(37,046,025) 

(168,909) 

(6,196,219) 



CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
For the Yo11r Ended September 30, 2016 

Otlter 
General Debt Scrvlcc Governmental 

Fund Fund Funqs 
REVENUES 

General property taxes s 4,905,620 s 4,020,203 $ 145,364 
Franchiso Taxes 694.972 
Sales Taxes 4.491.677 293,6(,2 
Penalty and interest 40.956 
Licenses and permits 204,0fl\ 

!ntcrgovcnuncntul J47,5()4 
Charges for :<1XVices 1,833,391 
Fines l,l l9,644 
Interest 4,601 
Miscellaneous 562.353 78,212 

Totnl Revenues 14,2Q1;719 2,098,415 439,026 

EXl'ENDl')'Ull~S 

<Jcncrnl government 2,454.851 
Pllblk sali:ty 8,79°2,749 
Pttblic works 2,ISll,911 
Culture w1d reorcntion 766,438 125,471 
Economic development 206;766 160,592 
Debt service: 

Principnl 366,731 2.850,000 
lntcrcsl 15.471 47S.2l8 
Bond issoo cOlllstagcn l f((s 1,100 

Capittd Outlay 409593 

Total ~xpendnum: 15.171,510 J,J26rJl8 286 063 
Excess (Dcfici(l\cy) of Revcuucs 

Over {Undcc) Expenditures {966,791) 11,227,903) 152,963 

OTHER FlNAN{;lAI. SOtlR~ES 

Rents 19.162 
Gnmt revenue 224,773 
Sale of asseis 197,719 
Inter fund trans fen: 59.8(i5 340,U5 
Loo.'1<:proce<,ds S60.JS9 

Total Other Financing Sources 1,061,688 340 135 

Nel Change In f lllld Bulances 94,897 · (887,768) 152,963 

Flllld Balance • Beginning of Y car 435,071 406,836 370,523 

Fund Balance - End of Yent $ 529,'168 !480,93~ 523,486 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the linancial statements. 
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Totnl 
Governmental 

Fund5 

$ 7,071,187 
694,972 

4,785,339 
40,956 

204,001 
347,504 

l,833,391 
1,119,644 

4,60.1 
640,56$ 

16i742,l60 

2.454,851 
8,792,749 
2,158,911 

891,909 
367,358 

3,216,731 
490,689 

1,100 
409,593 

18,783 891 

t2,04 I, 731) 

19,162 
224,773 
197,729 
400,000 
560,159 

11401,823 

(639,908} 

1,212,430 

s 572,522 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Reconciliation of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balam:cs of Government Funds to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Net Change in Fu.ltd Balances k Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for govenunental activities in tlte Statement of Activities 
are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However. 
in the Statements of Activities, the cost of those assets Is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount 
by which depreciation {$1,384, I g2) exceeded capital outlays ($720,615}. 

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, 
but issuing debt increases Jong.tenn liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 
Repayment of debt ptincipnl is .nn expenditure in the governmental funds, 
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in lhc Statement of Net Position. 
This is the amount by which proceeds ($560.159) in the currem period 
e.xceeded repyments ($3,216,731). 

Under the modified accrual basis of accoooting used in the govemmental funds, 
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that nre not noonally paid 
with expendable available financial resources. However, in the Statement of 
Activities, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabiJlties are 
reported regardJess of when financial resources are available. In addition, 
intere.~t on long-tenn debt is recognized under lhe modified accrual basis of 
accounting when due, rather than as it accrues. Thus, the change in net position 
differs from the change in fund balances by a combination of the following 
items: 

Accrued interest on debt 
Gain/loss on disposal of assets 
Pensio11 expense 
Compensated absences 
Bond premium. discount and deferred loss amortization expense 

Change ln Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying t10te;; are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

(639,908) 

(663,567) 

2,656,572 

30,531 
(336,246) 

( l, 722,030) 
8,783 

(41,902) 

(707,767) 
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Current Assets 

Ciuh Md cash cljuivnlcnts 

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Stntoment of Net Position 

Pl'oprleta1·y Funds 
September 30, 2016 

Acoounts receivable, net of allowance 
for doublfill accounts of $68,360 

lntergovemmentnl reccivabk-s 
lnvontary 
Prepaid Expenses 
Total Ciin·ent Assets 

Noneuncnt Assets 
Restricted cash 
Capiltll assets, net ofllccumulnted dcpreciulion 
Toti1I Noocurrcnt ~els 

Total Assefll 

~EEERRtD OllTEQ\Y~ OE Bt;SQl!RrEs 
Ocforred amount on ri:runding 
Deferred outflow.~-pe~1sions 

Total Deferred Outflows ofllC$011rccs 

LIAilfLJTIES AND NEI POS!TIQN 
Current LIHbililies 

Acoounts p11ynble 
Accrued expenses 
Aooued interest pa)'abk, 
llncnmod rcv~nue 
Cl1stomer deposits 
Capital debt 
Total Current Liabilities 

Nonc.urrc.nt Liabilitlcs 
Capital debt 
Non-1)ftpital debt 
Net pension llnl>llity 
TnlAl :-lnn~urrent Lioblllfie. 

Tntdl l.111bllltles 

U!.W!:;!lR!ill lJ:!!fL,QlYS Qf l!ESO!,JRrES 
Deferred inflows-pensions 

Tomi Deferred lnf1ows of Resources 

NET POSITION 
Net invcst111c11l in capital assets 
Resuict~d for: 

Debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Utility 
Fund 

$ 2,277.022 

787.641 

2.19S 
?93 690 

3J60,548 

423,991 
[2,0811639 
1215Q&1630 

15,869.178 

}48.3.'.\5 
399 878 

748 213 

140.414 
14.771 

145.328 
16,491 

339,352 
761237 

1,417.593 

12.131,354 
D.117 

1,969,598 
14,134 069 

IS.5SI 662 

JSJ,472 

1113 472 

Ctl59.6171 

423,991 
911,883 

$ 882,257 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Utility 
Fund 

OPltRATING REVENUES 

Charges for services $ 4,515,206 
Total Operating Revenues 4,515,206 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personnel 837,588 
Pension expense 147,922 
Depreciation and amortization 710,334 
Supplies 95,180 
Maintenance and other 284,) 18 
Water and sewer system management 1,246.247 

Total Operating, Expenses 3,321,389 

Operating Income l,1931817 

MON~OfERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES} 

Interest income 1,195 
Interest expense {294,222) 
Miscellimeous expense (3,284) 
Bond issue cost {128,525) 

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) {42418~6} 

Net Income (Loss) Before Transters 768,981 

lnterfund transfers {400;000} 
Change in Net Position 368,981 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 513,276 
Net Position - End of Year $ 882,257 

RECEIVED 

/. '"'. 3 1 7n,_q 
The accompanying not~ are an integral part of the financial statements. c,;:·,c1cE OF THE 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ende<l September 30, 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash recel\'ed fro,11 customers 
CB.!lh paym,mt~ for goods end services 
Cash payments to employees 

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activiues 

ChSH trµ>ws fROM NO~CAPITAL [<'JNAtiClNG ACTJVITIF.S 

lnterfund Activity 
Net Cash Provided By (Used Tn) Noncapitnl Finnnoiug Activities 

CASH 11LOWS FROM Ct\l'ITALANP RELA'l'EO FINANCING A<;TIVITIES 

Payments for capital ucquisitions 
Customer deposits 
Prow,ds of long-term debt 
Principal payments on debt 
Interest payments on debt 
Payment$ irt oonnec.'tiim with debt issu3llcc 

Net Cash Provided By (Osed In) Capital and Related Financing Activities 

CASH fl,OWS·FROM IN)'&STING ACTlVITIES 

lnum,st on invesunei11S 
Net Ca:ih Prm•illed By (Used In) Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cush und Cash Equivalents 

Cns.b nnd Cosb Equivalents-BeBinllll\g of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents-End of Year 

Reconciliutiori ofOpernting Income to Net Ca~b Provided By (Usc<l ln) 
Opc;ra.1ing Activities 

Operuli11g lnc-ome 

AdjustmentS to rcconcilt operating income to nc, cash 
provide.:! by operating activities: 

Doprcciation aud amortization 
(Increase) decrease in customer receivables 
(Increase) decruasc in other receivables 
(Increase) decreuse in prepaid expenses 
Uncrease) decrease in deferred outflows 
Increase (decrease) in accounts p11yablc 
tncrease (decrease) in con1pcnsat~'il ab5Cllcos 
lncrea~e { decrease) in net pension liability 
Increase (decrt:l!se) in accrued expenses 
Increase (d.ecrease) in dcte1red inflow, 

Total adjusuncnts 
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities 

Utility 
Fund 

$ 4.~65,192 
(1,691,208) 

\834,5&8) 
1,939.)96 

(638,624} 
[638,624) 

(594.556) 
10,427 

J.072.871 
(3,151,634) 

(338.875) 
!185,000) 

(1,186,767) 

l,195 
1.195 

11.5,200 

2.585,813 
$ 2,701,013 

$ 1,193,817 

710,334 
l50,374) 

(238,264) 
106,107 
{35,964) 
67.676 
t],000) 

145.871 
(40.753) 
83.946 

745 519 
s 1,939,396 

The accompanyir1g notes ate 1111 integral pwt of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30) 2016 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING P.OLICIES 

General St11temcnt 
The City of Horn Lake ("the City) was incorporated in l 973. The City opcrntes under the Board of Aldennen-Mayor 
fo1m of government and provides the following sendces: public safely (police and fire), public works (streets and 
sanitation), culture, recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. 

The financial :rtatements. of the Cit-}' have l:,een prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
("GAAP") as· applied to governmental units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board ("OASB") is the 
accepted standard-selling body for eslablisbing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

Financial Reporting Entity 
These financial statements present all the aceo\mts of the City. There are no component units as defined by GASB 
Statement 14, The Financial Reporting E1itity. 

Basis or Presentation 
The City's basic fmancial slatements consist of government-wide statements, including a Statement of Net Position 
and a Statement of Activities, fund financial statements n11d accompanying note disclosures which provide a detailed 
level of financial lnformntlon. 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information concerning the City as· a whole. For the 
most part, the effect of i.ilterfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities are 
generally fmanced through tax.es, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues and nro reported 
separately from busmess-type activities. Business-type activities rely mainly on fees and charges for support. The 
primary government is l'eportod separatoly from certain Jegall}' separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 

The Statement of Net Position presents the financinl condition of the governmental activities and business-type 
uctivities of the City at year-end. The Govemrnent-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct 
expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the City's governmental activities 1md business-type 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department lllld 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues illclude charges paid by the recipient of 
the goods or services offered by the program and grai1ts and contributions that are restricted to ·meeting the operational 
or eapltal requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other revenues not classified as program revenues, are 
presented 11S general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct e>..-penses with 
program revenues identifies the extent to which each business-type activity or govemmenta! function is self-financing 
or draws from the general revenues of the City. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund fina,ncial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be separate accounting 
entities. Bach fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing ncco\mts that constitute its assets, 
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. -Funds are organized into governmental and proprietary. 
Major individual Governmental Funds and major individual ElllelJ)rise Funds ru·e reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. Nonmajor fonds are aggregated and presented in a single column. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The Goverrunent-wide and Proprietary Funds financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accountiilg. Revenues are recognized when earned a1id expenses are 
recorded when the liablllty is incurred or economic asset used, regardless of when the related cash flows tako place. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
N9tes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended Septcmbcl' 30, 2016. 

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in tbe year for which they are levied. Shared ·revenues are recognized when 
the provider government recognizes the liabilily to the City. Gi·ants are recognized as revenues as soon as all 
eligioility requirements hnve been satisfied. · 

The revenues and expenses of Proprieta1y funds are clflssificd a.s operating or nonoperating. Operating revenues and 
expenses genemlly result from providing services in connection with a Proprietary Fund's primary operations. All 
other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating. 

Governmental financial statements are presented using a ctn-rent flnaocial resources measurement focus and the 
modified .accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized h1 tl)e accotmt-ing period when they are both 
measurable and available to finance operations during the year or to liquidate liabilities existing at the end of-the year. 
Availnble means collected in tile cm1"ent period or within 60 days after year end to liquidate liabilities existing at the 
end of the year. Mea&\1rnble means know•ng or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Expenditures are 
recognized in the accounting period when the related l\lnd liabilities are incurred. Debt service expenditures and 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgcmc11ts are recognized only when payment is due. 
Prnperty taxes, state appropriations and tederal awards are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been 
rf?cogn.ized as revenues of the current fiscal period. 

ihe City reporis the following major Govenunent.al Funds: 

Gencrnl Fund - This fund is used to account for nnd report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in 
another fund. 

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for resources accumulated and used for the payment of long-term 
debt principal interest and related costs. 

The City reports the following major Proprietary Fund: 

Utility Fund - The Utility Fund is used t.o account for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of the 
City. Activities of the fond Include administration, operations and maintenance of the water and sewer system. as well 
as billing and collection activities. The fund al!io accounts for the accumulHtion of resources for, and the payment ot~ 
long-term debt principal and interest for wal~r and sewer debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility 
customers with rates reviewed and adjusted il'necessary to ensure integrity of the funds. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Special Revenue Funds - These ftmds are used to account ·for and report tl1e proceeds of specific revenue sources tliat 
are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 

Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for and rnpo11 financial resources that are restricted, 
conunitted, or assigned 10 expenditure for capital outlays. including the acquisition or constn1ction of capital facilities 
and other capital assets. 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

Enterprise Funds -' These funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises or where the City has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred and/or net income 11, necessary for management accountability. 
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ClTY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financinl Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Budgets and Budgetary A.ccqunting 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

Tile City Charter establishes the fiscal year as the twelve-month period beginning October I. The departments submit 
to the City Clerk a budget of estimated expi,ndilures for the ensuing fiscal year after which the City Clerk submits a 
budget of estimated expenditures and reve.nucs to the Mayor and Board of Alderman by August I. 

Upon receipt of the budget estimates, the Board of Aldermen holds a public hearing on the proposed budget. 
Information about the budget ordinance is then published in the official newspaper of the City. 

At the September board n1eeting. the budget is legall)1 enacted through passage of ordinance. The City Clerk is 
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within nny fund; however, any revisions that alter the 
Iota! expenditures of any fund must be approved by 1hc Board of Aldermen. 

The actual receipts and disbt1rsements are accumulated each month and compared to the budgeted amounts and 
reviewed by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. Any revisions on the budget during the year are approved by the 
Board of Aldermen. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the prnvose of the Statement of Net Position, "cash and cash equivalents" includes all demand, savings accounts, 
and certificates of deposits of the City. For the purpose of the proprietal')' fund Statement of Cash Flows, ''cash and 
cash equivalents" include all demand ond savings acc-0unts, and certificates or deposit or short-term investments with 
nu original maturity of three months or less. 

Investments 
The City's lnvestment.s consist of shares of cpmmon stock and property held for sale .. The stock is valued at fair 
market value using quoted pri.ces il1 an actively traded market. 

Pl'operly Held for Sale 
The property held for sale is carried 11111n amount equal to the property taxes uncollected al the time the City received 
title 10 the property and limited to appraised values as assessed by the local tax collector. 

Inventories and Prepaid Items. 
Inventories hi U1e Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates imirket, using the first~in/fu·st-out method. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to fntllre accounting periods Md are recorded as prepaid items in 
both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items, such as prepaid insurance, are not repo11ed for 
governmental fond types since the costs of such items are accounted for as expenditures in the period of acquisition. 

Jntcrfund Tran511ctions and Balnnccs 
Transactions between funds that nn: representative of short-term lendinglbon·owing arrangements and transactions 
that have not resulted in the actual transfer of cash nl the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other 
funds." lnterfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in l-J1e 
Statement of Net Position. Any oll!standing balances between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the govemment~wide fmanciid statemenis as "Infernal balances." 

Resti-icted Assets 
Proprietary Fund assets required to be held and/or used as specified in bond indentures, bond resolutions, trustee 
agreements, board resolutions nnd donot· specifications have been reported as restricted assets. When both restricted 
and non-restricted assets are available for use. the policy is to use restricted assets first. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPJ 
Notes to Financial Stutem~nts 

For the Year Ended Septcntbel' 30, 2016 

Capital Assets :md Depreciation 
Cnp!tal assets, which include property, plant, elllliprnenl, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type 11ctivities columns in lhc government-wide financial stnteme,its and in the fund 
financial statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valul!d at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
actual historical cost is not aynilable. Donated cnpit.nl assets are capitalized at estimnted fair market value on the date 
donated. 

Depreciat_ion of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line method. Estimated useftil lives and 
capJta.1Ization thresholds offJ1e various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows: 

Land 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Mobile equipment 
F\lmiture· and equipment 
Leased property under capital leases 

Deferred Outnows/lnflows of Resources 

Capitalization 
Threshols!.L_. ___ _ 

50,000 
25,000 

5,000 
5,000 

,;, 

Estimated 
Useful Life 

NIA 
20-50 years 

40 years 
20 years 

5-10 years 
3-7years 

* 

In addition to assets, the statement or fmirncinl position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources. This separate financial stutemenl elemem, deferred outflows of resources, represents n consumption of 
net position that applies to a future perlod(s) and so will not be reqognized as 1111 outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. 

Deferred amount of refunding - For current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt 
reported by governmental activities, business type activities, and proprietary fonds, the difference between the 
reacquisition price nnd the JJet carrying amount of the old debt is reported as a deferred outflow of resources or a 
deferred inflow of resources and recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner 
over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. 

Deferred outflows related to pensions - This amount repre~ents the City's proportionate share of the defe1Ted outflows 
of resources reported by the pension plan in which the City parti~lpnles. 

In addition to liabilities; the slatemenl of financial position wiJl sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
innows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until !hat time. 

prnperty ta.-.. for future reporting. pyriod/w1avnilable revenue - P.roperty taxes - Deferred inflows of resources should 
be reported when resources associated with imposed nonexchange revenue transactions are received or reported as a 
receivable before the period for which property taxes are levied. 

Deferred innows related to pensions - This amount represents the City's proportionate share of the deferred inflows of 
resources reported by the pension plan in which the City participates. 

J>cnslon., 
For purposes of measuring lhe net pension liability, deterred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position. of the Public Employees' 
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS) and 11dditions to/deductions from PERS' fiduciary uet position have been 
detennlne<l on the same basis ns they arf) reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Stntcmcnts 

For th~ Year Ended September 30, 2016 

employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported al fair value. 

Long-term Liabilities 
Long-tenn liabiliti~s are the unmatured principal of bonds, loans, notes or other forms of 11011currenl or long-term 
general obligation imJebtedm;ss. Loog-term llabllities are not limited to liE1bilities from debt issuances, but may also 
include liabilities on lease-purchase agreements and other commitments. 

In the govemment-wide financial statements aud in the proprietary fund financial statements, long-terin debt and other 
long-term obllgations are reported as liabilities in the govemmental activities or Proprietary Funds Statement ofNet 
Position. 

Compensated Absences 
The City has adopted n policy or compensation for accumulated unpaid employee personal leave. No payment is 
authorized for accrued major medical leave. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
require accrual of accumulated unpaid employee benefits as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial 
statements and proprietary ftmd .furnncial statements. In fm1d financial statements, governmental funds repo1i the 
compensated absence liability payable only if the payable has matured, for example an employee resigns or retires. 

Equity Classiflcations 
Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Equity is clussified as net position and displayed in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital Msets including r~stricted capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation nnd reduced by the outstanding balances of11ny bonds, notes or other borrowings attributable to the 
11cquisition, construction or improvement"of those assets. 

Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints ph:1ced on the use either by external groups such as 
creditors. granters, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position - All other net position not meeting tlie detinition of"restricted" or "net invesunent in capitol 
assets." 

Net Position Flow Assumption 

When an expense is incumxi for purposes for whid1 both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or 
unassigned) resources are available, it is the City's general policy to use restricted resources first. When expenses are 
incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (conimilled, assigned, and unassigned) l'esources are available, and 
amounts in any of these restricted classifications could be used, it is the City's general policy to spend committed 
resources first, followed by assigned amounts, aud then unassigned amounts . 

.Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund balances for governmental funds are repo11ed in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the 
extent to whiclt the government is bound to honor constrninls on the specific purposes for which amounts in those 
funds can be spent. 

Government fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. The 
following are descriptions of fund classifications used by the City. 
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CHY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financinl Stntements 

.l<'or tbp Year Endecl Septem.ber 30, 2016 

Nonspe11dable fimd balance includes amounts that cannot be spent. This includes amounts !hat are eitl1er not in a 
spendable foml (inventories. prepaid amounts, long-1erm portion of loans/notes receivable, or property held for resale 
unless the proceeds from the collection of those receivables or from the sale of those pro11erties are restricted, 
commined or assigned) or amounts that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as a 
principal balance ofa permanent fund. 

Restricted fund ba/anco includes amow1ts that have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by an 
extcmal party or imposed by law tlu·ough a constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City's Intent to be ~1sed for a specific purpose, but 
are neither restricted nor committed. For govemmental funds. other than the general fund, this is the residual amount 
wlthin the fund that is not classified as nonspend11ble and is neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund 
balance are created by the Mayor pursuant to authori:t.alion established by the. Board of Aldermen. 

Unasslgnedfimd balance is the residual classification for the general tllnd. This classification represents fund balance 
that bas not been.nssigned to other funds and thal has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specilic purposes 
within the general fund. The g~nerul fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance 
an1ounl. In other governmental funds if expendltures incul'red for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, 
committed or asslgned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative tmassigned fund balance. 

Fund Balance Flow Assumption 

When nn expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (c,:ommitted, assigned or 
unassigned) resources are available, il is the City's general policy to use restricted resources first. When expenditures 
are incurred.for purposes -for which unrestricted (commJtted, assigned and u_nassigned) resources are available, and 
amounts in. any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the City's general policy to spend committed 
resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then ui1assigned amounts. 

Property Tax Revenues 
Restrictions associated with properly tax levks vury with the :-.Lututory m1!hori1)'· The nmount of [1,crcflsc in certain 
property taxes is limited by state- law. Generally, this restriction provides thol these tux levies shull produce no more 
than 110% of the amount which resulted from the assessments of the previous year. 

The Board of Aldermen., .each year at a meeting in September, levies property taxes for the ensuing fiscal year which 
begins on October I. Real property truces become a lien on January I of the current year, ang personal property taxes 
.become II lien on March I of the current yenr. Tnxes on both real and personal prope.-i1y, however, are· due on or 
before February I of the next succe~ding year. Taxes on motor vehicles and mobile homes that become a lien are due 
in the month that coincides with the month of the original 1>urchase. 

Accounting principles generally llCCcpted in the United Stalt's of America require property taxes to be recognized at 
the levy date if measurable and available. All property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are 
levied. Motor vehicle and mobile home taxes do not meet the measurnbility and collectabllity criteria for property tnx 
rc~ognition because the Jien nnd due dflte cannot be established until the date the original purchase occurs. 

Estimates 
The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily 
relate to unsettled transacti.ons and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly. actual results may 
differ from estimated amounts. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Stntemeilts 

For the Yea1· Ended September 30, 2016 

Intergovernmentol "Revenues in Governmental Fund§ 
Jntergovermnentnl revenlles. coni;isting. of grants. entitlements and shared revenues, are usually recorded in 
Governmental Funds when measurable and available. However. the "available'' criterion applies for certain federal 
grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made because expendirure is the prime factor for determining 
eligibility. Similarly, if cost sharing or matching requirements exist. revenue recognition depends on compliance with 
these requirements 

Recent Aecounting Pronouncements 
In Febmary 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, "Fair Value Measurement and Applications". This statement 
addresses accounting a11d financial reporting issues related lo fair value measurements. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June l 5, 2015. The City Is evaluating the 
impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations, or ca:ih nows upon adoption. 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 73, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related 
Assets Thal Are Not within the Scope of OASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Cctiain Provisions of GASB 
Statements 61 and 68". This statement will improve the usefulness of information -for decisions made by the various 
users of the general purpose exlef!1al financial. reports, The requirements of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning afler Juue 15, 2015. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial 
position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption. 

In June 2015. the GASB issued Statement No. 74, "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
Than Pension Plans", TI1is statement will improve the usefulness of inrormation about postemployment benefits other 
than pen~ions (otber postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in rhc general purpose external financial reports of 
state nnd local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. The requirements of 
this statement are effective for firtnncilll statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The City ls evaluating 
the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results ofoperations or cash flows upon adoption. 

In June 2015, the GAS8 issued Statement No. 75, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other TI1nn Pensions". This statement will improve accou11ting and financial reporting by state and local governments 
for postemploymenl benefits other thun pensions (other postemploymcnt benefits or OPEB). The requil'ements of this 
statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning afte1· June 15. 2017. The City is evaluating the 
impact, if any, upon its financial position, results ofoperations or cash nows upon adoption. 

In _June 20 It>, the GASB issued Statement No. 76, "111e Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prjnciples for 
State and Local Governments". This statement will establish the hierarchy ofGAAP for state and local governments. 
The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. 
The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows upon 
adoption. 

In August 2015. the GASB issued Statement No. 77, "Tax Abatement Uisclosures". This statement will improve 
financial reporting by giving users of financial statements essential information that is not consistently or 
comprehensively repo1tcd to the public at present. The requirements of this statement al'e effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The City is evaluating the i1npact, if any, upon Its financial 
position, results of operations, or cash flows upon adoption. 

In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 7&, "Pe11sions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans". This statement will address a practice issue regarding the scope and app.Jicability of 
Statement No. 68. The. requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015. The City is evaluating the impact, if any. upon its financial position, results of operations, or cash 
nows upon adoption. 
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In December 2015, lhe GASB issued Statement No. 79, "Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Pruticipants". 
This statement will enhru1ce comparubilily offinancial slntements among governments by establishing specific criteria 
used to determine whether a qualifying external investment pool may elect lo use an amortized cost exception to fair 
value measw-ement. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning 
after December 15, 2015. The City L'> evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations, or 
cash flows upon adoption. 

In Jonuary 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80, "Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units-an 
nmendment of GASB Statement No. 14". This statement will enhance the compnrabiLity of financial statements 
among governmcnL'I. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning 
after June 15, 2016. The City is evaluating lht impact, if any. upon it.s financial position, results of operations, or cash 
flows upon adoption. 

fn March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements". This statement will 
enhance the comparability of financial statements by providing accounting and reporting guidance for irrevocable 
split-interest ngreernents in which government: is a beneficiary. The requh·ements of this stlltement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its 
financial position, results of opera.tions, or cash flows upon adoption. 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, "Pension Issues". This statement will improve financial reporting 
by enhancing consistency in the application of financial re.porting requfremcnts to certain pension issues. The 
requirements of this s\aternent are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. TI1e 
City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its fmancial position, results of operations, or cash flows upon adoption. 

NOTE 8- J>RlOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

A summary of significant fond equity adjustment is as follows: 

Staremenr of Activities: 

fu\planation 

Record donation of property to Cit>· in 2012 

NOTEC-CA8H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Govemmental 
Activities 

$ 308,200 

The collateral for public entitles' deposits in financial institutions are held in the name of the State Treasw-er under a 
program 13Slabllshed by the Mississi(lpi State Legislature and is governed by ·section 27-105-5, Miss. Code Ann. 
(1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State 
Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities 11s collateral against those 
deposits. In the event of failure of a financial instlMion, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by 
the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation 
("FDIC"). 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institutions failure, the City's deposits might not be 
recovered. Tbe City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State Treasurer 
manages that risk on behalf of the City. As of September 30, 2016, the City's bank balance was not exposed to 
custodial credit risk. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISST1>PJ 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

As of September 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the City's deposits with financial institutions was $3,202,469 and 
the bank balances lotaled $4,067.223. Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the pledging financial 
institutions trust department or agent in the name oft he Mississippi State Treasurer on behalf of the City. 

NOTED - INVESTMENTS 

The foUowlng is a summary of changes in invest1ne111s: 

Bnlance nl Balance at 
lnveslments Fund 9/30/2015 Additions Deletions 9/30/2016 

Capital Stock General $ 95,390 $ 8,403 $ $ 103,793 

$ 95,390 $ 8.403 $ $ 103!793 

The stock was donated and Is carried at quoted market prices as of the balance sheet date. Cost basis is unknown. 

NOTE E- lNTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES 

Intergovernmental receivables consist of the following: 

Governmental 

Description Activities 
Ad valorem $ 70,465 
Grant Proceeds 42,463 

Snles T11x 376,786 

Tourism Tax 28,l34 

Totals $ 517,848 

NOTE F-PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE 

During 2013, five parcels of property were forteiled to the City due lo laxes being delinquent for three years. The 
pnrcels were recorded on the Statement of Net Position as property held for sole and valued at the accumulated 
uncollected taxes and lirnlted to fair value ns listed by the Desoto County Tax Assessor which is $982,591. 
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NOTE G-CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following is n Sllmmary of changes in capital assets: 

13nlance al Transfers I Balance at 

9/30/l5 Additions Dclclions Adjustments 9/30!16 

GOVF.RNMFNTAL ~CTn'lI!!§ 
Capitol nssets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 3,668,471 $ 97,000 $ 67,@ $ $ 3,698,471 
Conslruction in progress 300,0.W 174,891 474,930 

Total capital asset~. not hei11g depreciated: 3,%8,510 271,891 67,000 4J73l40l 

Capitnl assets, being de.preciatcd: 
Buildings aml impmvernenls 11,019,977 241,200 241,200 11,019;977 

P.quipment and machinecy 2,745,312 267,874 32,569 2.980,617 

Infrastructure 27,414,029 27,414,079 

Vehicles 4 991,028 247,850 93,004 5,1451874 

Total capital assets, being d¢preciated: 46,170,346 756924 36~773 46,560,497 

l.ess accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements (2.847,136) (284,874) (3,132,010) 

Equipment ru1d nmchincry (l.972.186) ( 177.163) 13,822 (2,135,527} 
lnfrnstructure ( 13.443,682) (750,056) (14,193,738) 
Vehicles ~ 4,244,905) {172,089~ &3.705 (4!333,289} 
To1nl 11ccumulnted depreciation (12,507,902} {IJ84,l822 97,527 (23,794,564) 

Total capitul assets, being depreciated, net 23,662,437 (627,258) 269.246 22,7651933 

Govemmentnl activities c11pital fl!,~e1s. net $ 27,630.947 $ p55,.lff/) $ 336,246 $ $ 26,9392334 

ll~\SINl.'.,'<;S-lrl'EACTIYffll':5 
Cap.ital assets. not being depreciated: 
Land $ 28,225 $ $ $ $ 2s,:m 
Construction in progress 374,900 594,556 t56,942) 912,514 
Total capital assets, no\ being dcprcci11ted: 403.125 594,556 ~56.942} 940,739 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 151,001 151,001 
Equipment and machinery 333.007 333,007 
lnfras1n1cture 20,I.J2,993 56,942 20.199,935 
Vehicles 56.121 5.6,121 
Tolal capital assets, boing depreciated: 20,683,122 56,942 20,740,064 

Less nceumulated depredation for: 
~uildings and improvements (41,585) (1850) (44,435) 

r·,quipmcnt and machinery (309.449) (2,291) (311)40) 
lnfra.~1ructure (8,528.890) (660.5891 (9, I !,'9,479) 
Vehick-s ~50,510) ~50,510} 
Total 11cc11niulated depreciulion \8.930,434) (665,730) (9,596.164) 

Total cap Ital Rsscls, being depreciated, net 11,752,688 (608,788) 11,143,900 

Business-type activities capital ass~ls, net $ 12,155,813 $ ~14,232) s $ (56,942~ $ 12,084,639 

No i11terest was capitalized during the year due to immateriality. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Yen!' Ended September 30, 2016 

Depreciation wus charged to functions of the City ns follows: 

Oovemmental Activities 
Function 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Cuhure and .Recreation 

Depreci11fion 
Expense 

$ 182,331 
368,298 
619,332 
214,221 

Business Type.Activities 
Fuuction 

Utllity 

Depreciation 
Expense 

$ 665,730 

Total depreciation expense _$ _ ___,I,~3_84""",_l 8_2_ Total depreciation fapense _._$~.,...._~66-5..,,7=3=0~ 

Commitments under construction contracts at September JO, 2016 are sununarized as follows: 

Project 
Tulane Road Connector 
Apple Creek Emergenc)' Watershed Project 
Twin Lakes \Vater fmprovements 

Total 

NOTE H -OPJrnATJNG LEASES 

Contract 
Amount 

$ 382,256 
127,350 

1,418,564 
$ 1,928.170 

Remain it1g 
Balance 

$ 12,079 

127350 
908.071 

$ 1,047,500 

Fund 

General Fund 
General Fund 
Utility 

The city receives income from the Newly Weds Foods, lnc. rail spur it leases under a noncancellable operating lease. 
Total income from this lease was $20,904. The future minimum lease receivables for this lease are as follows: 

Year(s) 
Ending 

Sep1ember 30 Amount 
2017 $ 20,904 

2018 20,904 

2019 20,904 

2020 20,904 
2021 20,904 

2022-2026 [04,520 

2027-2031 36,588 
245.628 

NOTE 1- INTERFUND mANSACTIONS 

[nterfund transactions are for the payment of monthly claims, and to provide funds for debt service and capital outlay. 
All transfers were rourinc nnd consistent with 1he activities oftbe fond. The folJQwing Is a·summary ofinterfund 
tranSactions as of September 30, 2016: 

Major funds: 
General Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Utility Fund 

Total fonds 

$ 

Trasfers In 

400,000 
340,l.35 

740,135 

34 

Transfers Out 

$ 

$ 

340,135 

400,000 
740,135 



.. 

Mnjor l'unds: 
Geneftll Fund 
Debt Sc1Yloe Fund 
Utility Fund 

Total funds 

NOTE ,J - LONG-TERM DEBT 

CITY OF BORN LAKE, MiSSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

t,'or tbe Year F,ndcd September 30, 2016 

Due from 

$ 

560,702 

$ 560,702 

$ 

$ 

Due To 

322,438 

238,264 
560,702 

Long-term, debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2016 was as follows: 

Balance al 

9/JOilS Additions Deletions 
Governmental activities: 

Gem:ru 1 obligalion bonds payable s; 12,9W, 000 $ $ 740.000 

Special obligation bonds payable 4,590,000 610,000 
Loans payable 1,766,532 1,520,904 
Leases payable 574,017 560,159 345,827 
Bond premium 162,977 24,329 
Bond discount (38,264) 5,466 
Deferred loss (448,507) 60,795 

Compensaled absences paxable 289,613 8,783 

Cbvernmental activities long-term liabilities $ 19,816,368 $ 626,420 $ 3,249,843 

Business-type activities; 
Special obligation bonds payable $ 10,670,000 $ 2,695,000 $ 2,950,000 
Loans payable 1,990,356 583;596 2.0l,634 
Bond premium 210,195 104,922 

Amounts 

Balance at Due Within 
9/30/16 One Year 

$ 12.180,000 $ 1,395.000 
3,980,000 625,000 

245,628 20,904 
788,349 380,519 
138,618 
(32,798) 

(387,712) 

280,830 

$ 17,192,915 $ 214211423 

$ 10,415,000 $ 555,000 
2,372,318 .206,237 

105,273 
Deferred loss (394,268) (45,933) (348,335) 

Compensated absences payable 36.117 3,000 33,117 

Business-Lype activities long-tem1 liabilities $ 12,512,400 $ 3,278,596 $ 3,213,623 S 12,577,373 $ 761,237 

The City has pledged special assessment taxes levied against certain properties to service a portion of the $7,120,000 GO 
bonds issued during fiscal year 2015. The levy will continue through tax year 2019 and is expected to generate an average 
of $67,500 in taxes per year. 

RECE\VED 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, M1SSISSIPP1 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Fol' the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pkdge full fuith and credit of the City. General obligation bonds 
outstanding as of September 30, 2016 are us follows: 

lnterest lssu·e Maturity Amow1ts 
Descrietion Rnte Date Date Jssucd Outstandin~ 

2008 3.25%-4.63% 4/1(2008 4/1/2023 $ 4,410,000 $ 2,505,000 
200& 2.75%-5.00%, 11/1/2008 11/1/2028 4,500,000 195,000 
2011 2.00%,-3.125%, 12/15/2011 8il'2024 3,395,000 2,360,000 
2015 2.00%-3.125% 5/28/2015 11/1/2028 7,120,000 7,120,000 

Tolal General Obligation Bonds $ 19,425,000 $12,180,000 

Special obligation bonds are issued by the Mississippi De\!elopment Bank under the Mississippi Development Bank 
Act. the proceeds of which are used to loan 1i10ney to the City pursuant to a loan agreement between the City and the 
Bank (or its assignee) and secured by a promissory nore. The note will never constitute a general obligation of the 
City, and neither the full faith and cre.dit nor the taxing power of the Ciry is pledged. however a tax intercept 
agreement secures the note payments. Special obligation bonds outstanding at year end are as follows: 

lutere~t Iss11e Maturity Amounts 
Descrietion Rate Dato Date Issued Outs tan dins 
2012 Specinl Obligation 

Recreation Facility Refunding 2.0%·3.0% 3/28/2012 10/1/2021 $ 5,185,000 $ 3,980,000 
Tola! Special Obligation Bonds $ 5,185,000 $ 3,980,000 

The CiLy issues revenue bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired or constl'llcted assets to pay 
debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at year end ate as follows: 

Interest Issue Maturity Amounts 
Descri2tlon "Rat~ Date Date Ts sued Outstandin~ 
2005 Special Obligation 

Refunding 2,4%-.:5.0% 6/1/2006 12/1/20.30 $ 12,750,000 $ 430,000 
2014 Special Obliglllion 

Reftmdlng 2.00/o-3.5% 7/9/2014 10/1/2027 7,320,000 7,320,000 
2015 Special Obligation 

Refim d big 3.00%-3.25% 10/29/2015 12/1/2030 2,695,000 2,665,000 
J'otal Re,.,enue Bonds $ 22,765,000 $ 10,415,000 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MJSSISSIPPI 
Notes to Finaocinl Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

The City uses loans lo finance its projects. Loans outsttmding al year end are as follows: 

interest [ssue Maturity Amounts 

Descrietiou Rate Date Date Issued OutstnndinG 

General 
MDA Railmad Spur 0.00% 8/1/2013 11/1/2020 $ 313,568 $ 245,628 

Total Loans $ 313,568 $ 245,628 

Interest Jssue Maturity Amounts 

Descrietion Rate Date Date Issued Outstandin~ 
Enterprise 
Drinking Water System 

Improvements Revolving Loan '1.00% 3/1/2001 J l/J/2020 $ 1,509,556 $ 425,315 
Drinking Water System 

Improvements Revolving Loan 3.50% I 1/13/2002 10/2/202.3 773.901 340,412 
C'.ap Loan (Water Treatn-cnt Plant) 2.n~. 11/20/2002 J0/2/2021 476,333 26),484 
Cap Loan (Water Treatment Plant) 3.00% 2/1/2005 10/ i/2027 587,905 370,111 
Cap T..oan (Allen Subdivision 

Sewer Improvement 2.00% 6/12/2012 2/1/2035 367,350 340,749 
Cap Loan (Twin lakes Sewer 

Jmprovement 2.00% 2/1/2005 2/J/2035 634,247 634,247 

Total Lonns $ 4,349,292 $ 2,372,318 

111e aggregate maturities of general obligation, special assessment bo11ds, revenue bonds and loans for the years 
subsequent to September 30, 2016 are as follows: 

Year Ending General Obliaation l:3onds Special Obligation Bonds Loans 
Seetcmber 30 Princieal lnlcresl Princieal Interest Princieal Interest 

2017 $ 1,395,000 $ 422,644 $ 625,000 $ 89,862 $ 20,904 $ 

2018 1,575,000 311.537 635,000 77,262 20,904 
2019 1,625,000 271,807 650,000 64,412 20,904 
2020 1,670,000 230,256 670,000 49,956 20,904 
2021 1,715,000 185,525 690,000 31,650 20,904 
2022-2026 3,235,000 383,619 710,000 10,650 104,520 
2027-2031 965,000 61,625 36,588 
Total $ 12,180,000 $ 1,867,013 $ 3,980,000 $ 323,792 $ 245,628 $ 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Finnncinl Statements 

Jl'or the Yea,· Ended September 30, 2016 

.Business Type Activities: 

Year Ending Revenue Bo11ds Loans 
Seetember 30 Princieal Interest Princi2al 1nterest 
2017 $ 555,000 $ 309,044 $ 206,237 $ 49,423 

2018 560.000 290.744 239,906 54,474 
2019 600,000 273,344 247,766 46,617 

2020 610,000 258,194 255,900 39,110 

2021 625,000 245,744 170,429 30,852 

2022-2026 3,420.000 932,613 658,096 100,401 

2027-203.l 4,045,000 329,390 312,964 42,648 
2032-2036' 214,458 14,751 

2037-2041 66,562 1,197 

$ 10,415,000 $ 2,639,073 $ 2,372,318 $ 379,473 

Future minimum capital lease payments and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of 
September 30, 2016 is ns follows: 

Year Ending Govem1ne11tal Activities 

Seetember 30 Princieal Interest 
2017 $ 374,719 $ 15,885 
2018 168,159 8,684 
2019 165,496 3.155 
2020 79,976 1,600 

$ 788,350 $ 29,324 

Advance refitnding - On October 29, 20 LS, the City issued $2,695,000 in Water and Sewer System Revenue 
Refunding Bonds with an average intere~t rate of 3.00% to advance refund $2,510,000 or the 2005 Special Obligation 
Water & Sewer Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 5.00%. 

The bonds had a total outstanding balance of $3,350,000 at the time of refunding, but only $2,510,000 of the 2005 
bonds was refunded. 

The net proceeds of $2,566,475 (af\er payment of $128,525 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used 
to purchase US gove111mcnt securities. TI10se securities were deposited. in au irrevocable trust wtth an escrow agent to 
p1'0vide .for a portion of future debt service payments on the bqnds. As a result, those bonds are considered to be 
defeased, and lhe liability for those bonds has been removed fi-om l'he Statement of Net Position. 

The City advance refunded the above bonds to reduce its lolril debt service payment over the next 15 years by nlmost 
$325,495 and 10 obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values or the debl service payments on the 
old and new debt) of $259,971. 

Legal Debt Margin. The City is subject to the limitations of indebtedness prescribed by Section 21 #33-303, Miss. 
Code Ann. (1972). No municipality may issue bonds secured by II pledge of its full fnit11 and credit in an runount 
which, when added to the thim outstanding bond Indebtedness of such municlpnlity, would exceed the 15% and 20% 
tests prescribed in Section 21-33-303. These percentages are applied to the assessed value of dle taxable property 
within such municipality, with certain types of bond issues being excluded from the authorized debt limit tests. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

li'or the Yenr Ended September 30, 2016 

Presented in the schedule below are the calculations of the applicable statutory debt limitations and the resulting 
margin for further debt in the amount of$1 l,207,690 (the smaUer of the two computed margins) as of September 30, 
2016. 

Net Assessed Value as ofSeptcmbcr30, 2016 
($155,917,936 times npplk-nble percentage) 

Present debt subject to debt limit as ofS~ptember 30. 2015: 
Total bonds outstanding (e;,.-cludc proprietary) 

Margin for additional debt 

NOTE K- DEFINW BENliFIT PENSION PLAN 

General informal ion aboul the Pension Plan 

15%Test 2()0Ai test 

$ 23.387 .690 $ 31,183,587 

(l 2, I 80,000) (12,180,000) 

$ .11,207,690 $ 19,003,587 

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS), a cost­
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension pl1111. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, aDJ1ual 
cost-of-living adjustmtmts and dea.tl1 b~nefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by 
state law and may b~ amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PBRS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That information may be obtained 
by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System, PERS Building. 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 3920 I­
I 005 or by calling 1-800-444 PERS, 

Be11efi1s Provided. Membership in PERS is a condition of employment grunted upon hiring for qualifying employees 
and officials of the Stale of Mississippi, state universities, community and junior colleges, and teachers and empJoyees 
of the public school districts. For those persons employed by political subdivisions and instrumentalities of the State 
of Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity's p·articipation in PERS by the PERS' Board of 
Trustees. Ir approved, membership for the entity's employees is a conAition of employment IID.d eligibility is granted 
to those who qualify upon hiring. Participating members who are vested and retire at or after age 60 or those who 
retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of creditable service for employees who 
bocnme members of PERS before .luly I. 2011) are entitled, upon application. to an annual retirement allowance 
payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 2.0 percent of their average compensation for each ycnr of creditable 
service up to and including 30 year!> (25 year~ for those who became members of PERS before July I, 201 l ), plus 2.5 
percent for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of 
creditable service bel.ow 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below 65, whichever is less. 
Average compensation is the average of the employee's earnings during the four highest compensated years of 
creditable service. Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four years of membership 
service for those who became members of PERS before July I, 2007). PERS also provides ce1tain death and disability 
benefits. A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The COLA is 
equal to 3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which 
the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became members of PERS before July I, 2011 ), with 3,0 percent 
compounded for each fiscal year thereafter. Plan provisions are established and may be amended only by the State of 
Mississippi Legislature. 

Contributions. At September 30, 2016, PERS members were required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary, 
and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer's rate at September 30, 2016 was 
15.75% of annual covered payroll. The contributlon requirements of PERS members and employers are established 
and may be umended only by the Stale of Mississippi Legislaturei Tho City's contributions (employer share only) to 
PERS for the years ending September 30, 2016, 2015 nnd 2014 were $1,241,388, $1,237,471. and $1,256,451, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSI8S1PP1 
Notes to financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and De/erred Outjlows of Resources and Deferred lnjlows of Resources Refoted 
to Pensions 

At September 30, 2016, the City reported a liability of $21,434,996 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on u projection the City's long-tenn share of contribution to the pension plan relative to 
projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. Al June 30, 2016. the City's proportion was 
.1200 percent, as opposed to its proportion of. l 265 percent measured as of June 30, 2015. 

For the year ended September 30, 2016., the City recognized pension expense of $1,938,216. At September 30, 2016, 
the County repo1ted defened outflows of resourcos and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
foUowing sources: 

Defen-ed Outflow Deferred Inflow 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and ac1unl c.\l)erienc,• $ 5'13,904 $ 

Ornngcs of assumptions 1,065.227 56,%0 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 2,551,920 
01anges in Lhe City's pn.lp.ortion and differences 

between the City's contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 2,064,780 

City contributions subsequent to the measurement 

date 313,649 

Total $ 4,474,700 $ 2,121,740 

$313,649 reported as defen·ed outflows of.re·sources related to pensions resulting from City contributions subsequent 
to the measurement dale will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension linbility In the year ending September 30, 
2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources nnd deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Yea1· Ending September 30 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Total 
2017 $ 1,582,029 $ (975,771) $ 606,258 
2018 1,377,640 (86,598) 1,291,042 
2019 777,fl29 (280,051) 497,878 
2020 423,453 423,453 

$ 4,161,051 $ (1,342,420) $ 2,818,631 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary lncreases 
Investment rate of return 

3 .00 percenl 
3. 75 - 19.00 percent, including inflat.ion 
7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense. including inflation 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financinl Statements 

For the Ye111· Ended September 30, 2016 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table Projected with Scale BB to 2016, 
with males rates set forwt1rd one year. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valu11tion were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for'the period July I, 2010 to June 30, 2014. The experience report is dated May 4, 2015. 

The long,-ti:1111 expected rate of return on pension plan investments wu~ determined using a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate rnnges of expected futun~ real rntes of' return (expected nominal returns, net of pension 
plan Investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimates of 
artlhmetic real rates of rctttrn for each major asset class as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the foJlowing table: 

Long-Te1m 
Target 8-pected Real 

Assel Class Allocation Rate ofRetum 
U.S. Broud 34.0%, 5.2% 
ll1Lcrnation11l Equity 19.0% 5.00A, 

Emerging Markets Equity 8.0% 5.5% 
Pored Income Read Assets 20.0% 0.3% 
Real Assets [0.0% 4.0% 
Private Equity 8.0% 6.2% 
Cash 1.0% -0.5% 

Total 100.0% 

Discount Rate. The discolult rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .75 percent. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current 
contribution ra~e (9.00%) and that employ.er contributions will be- made at the c,urrent employer contribution rate 
(15.75%). Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all prqjecte<l future benefit payments of cun-ent plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the total pension 
liability. 

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionqte Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The 
following presents the City's propottionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discow,t rate of 7 .75 
percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is 1- percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or I- percentage point highet (8.75 pe1·cent) tha11 the 
current rate. 

Cit}'°s proportionate share of the net pension liability 

1% 
Decrea~e 

6.75% 
$ 27,484,471 

Discount 
Rate 

7.75% 

$ 21,434,996 

1% 
Increase 
8.75% 

$ 16,415,893 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available 
In the separately issued PERS financi11l report. 

NOTE L-RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 

omissions; and natural disasters. This exposure is co;~d by purchasl' ofco·"''m~•li"'"~;CE(VED .. ¥~.-~: 
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NOTE M-CONTINGENC1ES 

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSil,P.l 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For tho Year Ended September 30, 2016 

l<ederal Grants - The city has received federal grants for specific purposes !hat arc :mbject to nudit by the grantor 
agencies. Entitlements to these resources are generally conditional upon compliance with lhe tenns and conditions of 
grant agreetnents nnd applicuble federal regulHtions. including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. 
All)' disallowance resulting from ti grnntor audit may become n liability of the city. No provision for any liability that 
may result has been recognized in the City's tinaucial statements. 

Litigation - The ·city is party to legal proceedings, many of which oc1;ur in the normal course of governmental 
operations. It is not possible at the present time to esti.rnate ultimate outcome or liability, if any, of the city with 
respect to the various proceedings. The city has a reasonably possible loss contingency of$479,403 relating to a 2008 
tax sale. 

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Events thul occur after the Statement of Net Position date bm before the financial statements are available to be issued 
must be evabiated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about 
conditions that existed at the Sta1ement ofNet Position date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements. 
Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the Statement of Net Position date 
require disclosure in the accompanying rio.tes. Management of the City of Horn Lake evalm1ted the activity of the city 
through August 11, 2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that the 
following subsequent events have occm,·ed that l'equire disclosure in the notes to the financial stlltements. 

On December 6, 2016, the City approved lease purchase financing of a fire truck and related equipment with First 
Commercial Bank for $787,795. 
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REVENWi 
G::ncral propc11y Imes 
Franchise Tax 
Licenses and permit~ 
lntergovcmmentnl 
Charges for services 
Fines 
Interest 
M isl•ellnneous 

Total revenue~ 

EXP liND[[URES 
n~neral guvcrmrt.':nl 
Public safety 
Public. works 
Culture nnd rec1~ation 
Economic Developrrcnt 
Debt Service 

Total cxpenditurrs 
E'.~-ess tDencknry) of Revenues 

Over (Under) E-qlenditurcs 
Other financing Sources (Uses) 
Grant Revenue 
lnterfund Transfer 
Sale or Assets 
Lca:;e Proceeds 

Toto I Other Financing Sources (.Uses) 
Net change in fund balances 

Fund Balance· &ginning ofYear 
Fund Balance -End of Year 

Adjustments to co_nfuim with GA.AP: 
Revenues 
E°.'q)CllditUl'CS 

Fund Bnlan.:e -End ofYear(GAAP ha.~isl 

CITY OF HORN LAKE, M-JSSISSlPPl 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund 
For the Year Ended Septem bcr 30, 2016 

B11dgot1ld Amounts Actu11l Amqunts 
Original Finni Bud2etnrr Bnsls 

$ 9.417,000 $ 9.417.000 $ 9.358.633 
730..500 nn.5oo 680.360 
212,1110 212.100 204.001 
4'>2.500 272.076 347.504 

2,184,000 2,184.000 1,833,391 
1,199.000 1,199,000 1,160,600 

3,000 3,000 4,601 
403,805 317 776 562,353 

14,641,905 14 39:IA52 14,151.443 

2,718,250 2,854.-175 2,692,758 
9,190.430 9,566,307 8,863,087 
2,259,800 2,321,365 2,186,775 
1,054,220 1,054.220 1126,053 

200,500 205,860 206,766 
380.305 382,205 382,202 

15.803.505 16J84.432 15,157,641 

(l.)(11,600} ( I. 988.980) ( l,0061198) 

0 0 306,756 
940,000 1,025.500 59,865 

17.600 17,600 lr:rl,729 
204,000 514,617 579,321 

1.161.600 1155?.717 1.143,671 
$ $ (43 l.263) s 137 473 

435 071 
572,544 

(28,707) 
(13,869} 

$ 5291968 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

Basis of Presentation 

ViariRnc-c with 
Final B11dget 

$ (58,367) 
(50,140) 

(8,099) 
75.428 

(350,609) 
(38,400) 

1,601 
184 577 

(244,009) 

161,717 
703,220 
1.34,590 
228,167 

(906) 
366,734 

1,593,522 

1,349,513 

306,756 
(%5,635.) 
180,129 
64 704 

(720,802} 
$ 628.711 

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legally adopted budget, the final legally·adopted amounts on a 
budgetar)' basis and variances between the final budget and the acl\Jal amounts. The schedule is presented for the General 
Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule is part of required supplementary information. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

City's proportion ofthe net pension liability 

City's proportiona1e share of the net pension linbility 

City's covered employee pnyroll 

City's proportionate share of the net pens ion liability 
as a percentage ofits covered employee payroll 

Plan Oduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total peni.ion liability 

$ 

$ 

2016 
0.1200% 

21,434,996 

7,881,829 

271.95% 

57.47% 

2015 

0.1265% 

$ 19,554,406 

$ 7,902,200 

247.46% 

61.70'% 

The notes.to the required supplementary information are an integral part of'this schedule. 

*The amounts presented fol' each year were detem1ined as of June 301
h ofchc year prior to the fiscal year presented. 

The schedule is presented to illustrate tbe requirement to show information for IO years. However, GASB No. 68 was 
Implemented in the fi~cal year ended September 30, 2016, and, until a full l 0-.year ·trend is- compiled, the City has only 
presented information for the years in which information is available. 
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Last 10 Fiscal Years" 

Contractually required contribution 

CITV OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of City's Contributions 

For the Year Ended September 30) 2016 

2016 2015 
$ L.241,388 s 1,237,471 

Contn'b\1tions ·in relation to the contractually 
1-equired contribution $ 1,241.338 $ I ,'235,977 

Contribution deficiency (e:,«;ess) $ $ 1,494 

City's covered - employee payroll $ 7,881,829 $ 7,856,961 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 15.75% 15.75% 

The notes to the required supplementary infonnation are an integral part of this schedule. 

*This schedule is presented to illusb.ite the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB No. 68 was 
implemented in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. and, until a full I 0-year trend is compiled, the City has only 
presented information for the years in which information is available. 
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Pension Schedules 

CITY OF HORN LAKE, M1SSISSIPP1 
Notes to the Required Sup1>lcmcntary Information 

For tbc Year Encle.d September 30, 2016 

(I) Change of Benefil Terms 

Effective July 1, 2016. the interest rote on employee comributions shall be calculaled based on the money 
mark.et rate as published by the Wall Street Journal oo December 3 l of each preceding year with a minimum 
rate of one percent and a maxlmum rate of five percent. 

(2) Change of Assumptions 

The assumed rale of interest credited to employee contributions was chunged from 3.5% to 2.00%. 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of Expenditures of Fedenl Awards 

For the Year Ended September 30j 2016 

Federal Grnntor 
Pass·through Gran tor/ 
Pivgram Title 

US Dcpllrtment ot'Tr11ns portation 
Passed through Missi~sippi Deprtment of Public Safety 

Occi1pallt Protection Incentive Grants 
Alcohol Opem Container Requiren1ents 

Passed through Mississippi Deprtrnent ofTraasportalion 
Highway Planning and Construction 

Passed through Mississippi Depnment ofTransportalion 
Highwa)' Planning and Construction 

Total US Depa11ment ofTrar1spo11atlon 

l?.nvll'Onmentnl Protection Agency 
Passed through MississippiDepnrtment ofHealth 

Capitalization G-ants for Drinking Waler State Revolving Funds 

Total Environmental Protection Agency 

US Department of Agriculture 
Passed through Mississippi Natural Resources Conservation Service 

Emergency Waters heel Protection 

Total US Depmtment of Agriculture 

Total E.\'penditures of federal Awardi; 

Notes to Schedule: 

Fedcml 
CFDA 
Number 

20.602 
20.607 

20.205 

20.205 

66.468 

L0.923 

Pass-through 
Number 

IS·PT-218-1 
J 5-ST·218-I 

STP-0017·00(037) 

STP-9227-00(008) 

OW l·LI 70022·03-0 

68-4423-16-241 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 21,282 
120,044 

101,466 

19,995 

262,787 

532,946 

532,946 

11,243 

11,243 

$ 806,976 

• I. The accompanying Schedule ofExpenditw·es of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City and is 
presenied on the same basis of accounting and the same significant accounting policies, as applicable, as those used for the 
financial statements. The infonnati(111 in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in 0MB 
Circular A-871 Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminis1rative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

., Federal Awards, wherein ce1taih types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Because the 
schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present tbe financial 
position. changes in net position. or cash flows of the City. 

2. The City did not elect to use the 10% de miJ1imis indirect cost rate. 

"' 
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CITY OF HORN LAI{E;1 MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of SlU·oty Bonds for Municipal Officials 

For the Yru1r Ended September 30, 2016 

Name Position Company 

Allen latimer Ml)yor Fidelity 

Jim Robinson City Clerk Fidelity 

Tara Warren Court Clerk Fidelity 

Darryl Whaley Police Chief Fidelity 

Arianne Linville Humm Resources Director Fidelity 

Danny Smith Animal Shelter Director Fidelity 

Julie Valsamis Accounting Clerk Trnvele1's 

Aldennen (each) Fidelity 
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Amount 

$ 75,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

100,000 
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F.O. GIVENS & COMPANY 
CJ-.'JffWlt:V /'/.!/JI.IC ACCOUNTAN7:<; 

212 SOUTH WARD ST. SENATOBIA, MS 36668 PHONE 662/562-6721 
6699 GETWELL ROAD, BUILDING E, SUITE 5 SOUTHAVEN. MS 38672 PHONE 662/349-3798 

FRANK 0. GIVENS, llI 
Certified Public Accountnnt 

W. BUFORD GIVENS 
Ccrtilled Public Accountanl 

JNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FlNANCJAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE FVTTH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To tho Mavo1· and Board of Aldermen 
City ofH~rn Lake, Mississippi 

We have audited, in accordnncc with the auditing standards generally nccopled in the United States of America and 
I.he standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard~ issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the govenunental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Horn Lake, Mississippi, as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 20161 and the related notes to the financial statements, whfoh collectively comprise City 
of Horn Lake, Mississippi's basic financial statements and hove issued our report thereon dated August 11, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfom1lng our audit of the financial statement~. we considered City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures thal are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpos<': of expressing our opinions 011 the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of I-Jorn Lake, Mississippi's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do uqt express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of perfonning their nssigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A 111a1erial we(l/mess is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
coatrol such 1hat Ulern is u reastinable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented. or detected and corrected on a titnel)' basis. A signijfoanl tleficiem,J' is a deficiency. or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that i~ less severe than a material weakness. yet importnnl enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal cQutt.ol was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to Identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, duriiig our audit we did not Identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be m11teri<1l weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist and not be identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance aboul wlwther the City or Hom Lake, Mississippi's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we pe1for111ed tesls or its compliance with ce1tain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the detennination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
result~ of lhlll testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of un audit pcrfornwd in ilCcordancc with Government Auditing Stondards 
in considering the entity's internal control llnd compliance. Accordingly. this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

re. Jivti\4) c{ c?··; 
F. 0. Givens & Company 
Senatobia, Mississippi 
August 11, 2017 
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F.O. GIVENS & COMPANY 
CEJfflFIED PUBUC ACCOIIN7:.JNTS 

212 SOUTH WARD ST. SENATOBIA, MS 38668 PHONE 662/562-6721 
5699 GETWELL ROAD, BUILDING E, SUITE 5 SOUTHAVEN, MS 38672 PHONE 662/349-3798 

FRANK 0. GIVENS, III 
Certified Public l\ccountan1 

W. BUFORD GJVENS 
Certified Public Accountanl 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUlDANCE 

To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Hom Lake, Mississippi 

Report on Compliance fol' Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi's compliance with the types of compliance requirements desc1ibed in tbe 
0MB Compliance Supplemellf that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Horn Lake. Mississippi's 
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2016. City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's major federal programs are 
identified in lhe summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings ·and questioned costs. 

Mm1nge111e111's Respon.\·lbiliry 

Milnagemen1 is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations. and the terms and conditions of its federal awards 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Arulltar's Responslblli(1• 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Horn Lake; Mississippi's ma,ior federal 
programs based 011 our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance 
I~ accordai1ce- with auditing s-tanaards generally accepted in the United States of Americat the standards applicable to fii11incfal 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regu!Cltiom Part 200, Uniform Administrarive Requiremems, Cost Principle!i~ 
and Audit Requirements/or Fedei·al Awm·ds (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Vnifom, Guidance require that we 
phm and perform the audit to obtaill reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct imd material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, cvideoce about the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi's compliance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 
our audit-does not provide a legal determination oflhe City of Hom Lake, Mississippi's complinnce. 

Oph1ln11 011 £"ch Maj()r Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi. complied, in all mmerial respects, with the lypes of compliance 
requirements refe1tcd to above that could have 11 direct and material effect on each of its major feder<1I programs for the year 
ended September 30, 2016. 

Repo11 on Internal Control over Com.pliance 

·Management of the City of Hom Li1ke, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maii1taining effective internal control 
over compliance with t.hc types of compliance requirements referred to above. In plmming and perfonning our audit of 
compliance. we considered the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements tJ1at could have a direct and muterial effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federnl 
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program and to tesl and r'cport on intemnl contt'OI over compliance in accordance with l11e Uniform Guidance, but nol for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internnl control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effeclivenes!; of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's internal control ove1· compliance. 

A deficiency in interned control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a co!\trol over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functio.ns, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncornpliailce wiU1 a type of compliance requlrenJe~t of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in inre.rnal 
control ovel' complianc.e is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there·is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and conected, on a timely basis. A significcmt deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency. or a combination of' deficiencies, In Internal co111rol over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less sew.re than a material wenkness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in -the fu·st paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control.over compliance that might be material weakness(ls 
or significant deficiellcies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider lo be 
material weaknesses. However, mflterial weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

111e purpose of this rep01i on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing or internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

i!~~~(Jr, J.~: Givens & Co. 
Senatobia, Mississippi 
August 11, 2017 
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F.O. GIVENS & COMPANY 
CERT/FLED PUBLIC ,ICCOUNTANTS 

212 SOUTH WARD ST. SENATOBIA, MS 38668 PHONE 662/562-6721 
6699 GE1WELL ROAD, BUILDING E, SUITE 5 SOUTHAVEN, MS 38672 PHONE 662/349--3798 

FRANK 0. GIVENS, Ill 
Certified Public Accountanl 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE COMPLIANCE 
WJTH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Mayor and Board of Aldem1en 
City of Hom Lake, Mississippi 

W. BUFORD GIVENS 
Certified Public Accountant 

We have audited lhe bnsic financial stntcmcnts oflhe govcmml?ntal activities, th~ business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of' Hom Lake, Mississippi ("the City"), as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 20 I 6, and have issued our report dated August 11, 20 I 7. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the stand11rds applicable to financial audits contained in the 
Governme/11 A11dillng Standard. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of Ametica. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we have also perfo1med 
procedures to test compliance with certain state. laws and regufotions. Howeve1·, providing ru1 opinion on compliance with state 
laws and regulations was not 1111 objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of those procedures performed to test compliance with certain other state laws and regulations and our audit of the 
flnanclal statements disclosed the following instance of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. Our finding and 
recommendation and your respon~e is as.follows: 

Finding . . -
MS Code Section 21-35-29 lequires that the ·budget ·adopted by the Municipality be a balanced budget. While the original 
bud~et adopted by the City was balanced, the final budget was not in balance. Budgeted expenses exceeded budgeted revenues 
by$431,263. 

Recommendt!.!i@ 
The City should ensure the tinal budget is balanced. 

Response 
The original budget adopted by the City was balanced. Budget amendments w.ere also balanced; .however, there was an e1TOr in 
posting a budget amendment into the software whereby the budget amendment posted only one side of the budget amendment 
entry, resulting in understatement of budgeted revenues. The City will be diligent in reviewing all posted budget amendment 
entries to ensure that the budget remains in balance. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City's n1nnagernenl, federal awarding agencies the Office of 
the State Auditor and pass-through entities nnd is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. However, this repor1 is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

F.O. Givens & Co. 
Senatobia. Mississippi 
August 11,2017 
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Section I: Summn1y of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statement~ 

I. Type of auditor's report issued on the financial statements: 

2. Internal Ct1n1rol over financial reporting: 

a. Material weaknesses identified? 

b, Significant deficiency identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

3. Noncompliunce material to the financial statements noted: 

4. Internal control over major tederal Programs: 

a. Material wenknes~(es) identified? 

b. Significant deficiency{ies) identified? 

5. Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: 

6. Any audit finding(s) disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 
With Section 510(a) ofOMB Circular A-133? 

7, Identification of major fed~ral programs; 

a. 66.468 Environmental Protection Agency 

8. Dollar thre·shold used to distinguish between type A ond type B programs: 

9. Auditee qualified as low-risk a1,1ditee: 

Section 2: Financial Statement Findings 

U11modified 

No 

N.one Reported 

No 

0 

None Reported 

Unmodified 

No 

$750,000 

0 

11ie results of our tests did not disclose any findings related to the financial statcmems that nre required to be reported by 
Government Audiling Standm·ds. 

Section 3: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

The results ofour tests did not disclose any findings aod questioned costs related to federal awards. 

',.r··--:""" 
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